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LBAYEL, RAMOS TOREES,
wag called as a witness and, having first golemnly declared, was
examined and testified, through the interpreter, as follows:
PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: Mr. Pearce?

MR. PEARCE: fThank you, sir.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. PEARCE:
Q Good evening, Mr. Ramos.
A Good afternoon.
Q My name is Clyde Pearce. I am one of the attorneys for the

Claimant in this case, and I am going to ask you some guestions about
testimony that you have given in this case.

You have given two Witness Statements in this case;

correct?
A Yes, that's so.
Q And have you read those statements over in preparation for

your testimony here today?

A Yes, sir.

Q And having read them, sir, do you today reaffirm what you
have testified in both your Counter-~Memorial and your Rejoinder
Statements?

A Yes.
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Q pid you, sir, review any other documents in preparation for

your testimony here today?

A Yes, but it's almost exclusively based on what I've already
declared.

Q What other documents did you review?

A With respect to the same case.

Q Yes, gir. And can you tell me specifically what those

documents were?

A Well, it's all based on my statements or on something which

is consistent with my statements.

Q Did you review the statements of any other witnesses?

A No; only my own.

Q Did you review any of the pleadings?

A Only our own.

Q Would that be the Counter-Memorial?

A Yes, and I would repeat it is with respect to the same
thing.

Q And also the Rejoinder?

A Yes.

Q Did you read anything from the Memorial?

A Yes.

Q And anything from the Reply?
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A Yes.
Q Did you meet with anyone from the Government of Mexico, any

of their lawyers or their staff?

A We have talked.

Q And did they review with you your testimony for today?

-1 Yes, of course, althougﬂ any testimony I give is sclely my
own.

Q Certainly. Did they advise you on how to answer any
questions?

a Well, yes, but I repeat the testimony is solely my own.

Q Did anyone suggest to you what questions might be asked of
you today?

A No, no, of course not, because I didn't know what I was

going to be asked.

Q Did anyone suggest to you what areas of inguiry might be
pursued in your examination today?

A No. I believe, or I thought, that those subjects would be
the same of those on which I gave testimony.

Q Mr. Ramos, you served as the Municipal President in
Guadalcazar for approximately two years; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q And what is your current occupation, sir?
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A Farmer and merchant.

Q Was the job of Municipal President a full-time job?

A Yes.

Q Were you paid a salary as Municipal President?

A Yes, yes, fees.

Q How often did the ayuntamiento meet?

A Monthly, and there was a monthly meeting of the Cabildo
{ph.].

Q And did you meet with the ayuntamiento in their monthly
meetings?

A Yes. I chaired the meeting.

Q And also the cabildo?

A Yes.

Q What was the operating budget for your Municipality during

each of the years you were Municipal President?
A I don't recall exactly the number, but it was something

important, what was given to me.

Q Can you give me an idea what it was?
A I repeat, I don'‘t recall.
Q You have no idea, sir, what your annual budget was for the

years that you were Municipal President?
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A There was=~-there was a budget for expenditures and revenues
that was done, and it was something--and it was for the Federal
Government.

Q I'm sorry—-it was from the Federal Government?

A Yes. The Federal Government gives the participation to the
Municipality.

Q Is it also correct, sir, that the State Government must
review and approve your budget?

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: Yes, Mr. Perezcano?

MR. PEREZCANO: There was a mistake in the-interpretation.
I understand that Mr. Ramos said that the Town Council made a proposal
for the State Government and for the Federal Government, not from the
Federal Government to the cabildo, the Town Council.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: Thank you. the correction will be
noted.

Mr. Pearce?

BY MR. PEARCE:

Q I'm not sure where we are with the answer now. Is the
answer that the money comes from the State Government?

A The Federal Government is the one that contributes with the

majority of the resources,
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Q Is it correct that the State Government must review and
approve your budget?

A The Government of the State, no; the local Congress will
review the budget.

Q What portion of the money for your yearly budget came from
the San Luis Potosi State Government?

A It's very difficult to say or to speak about a percentage,
but I would say that more or less, it would be 25 or 30 percent.

Q And just so that I can try to understand correctly, if I
remember what Mr. Perezcano was saying, the Municipality would make
application to the State, and the State would submit a budget to the
Federal Government?

A Yes, that's it.

Q Thank you. &And isn't the Governor the person who has a lot
of influence about how much money is going to be asked for from the
Federal Government?

A No. I think it depends--it depends on the budget or the
participation that is given to each of the Muniecipalities. It depends
on the Federation and each of the States.

o] And deesn't it also depend on the application made from the
State to the Federal Government?

A The Congress does this.,
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Q Mr,., Ramos, I would now like to ask you a few questions——

MR. PEARCE [To Interpreter): If you'll let me phrase a
little longer, we'll be okay.

THE INTERPRETER: Of course.

BY MR. PEARCE:

Q --a few questions about the testimony you have already
given in this case. And I would like to begin by asking you about the
negotiations in late 1996 and early 1997 that led to what has been
referred to in this case as the Acuerdo.

You participated in the negotiations in October 1996
regarding the circumstances under which the landfill at La Pedrera
might open; correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And did these negotiations, Mr. Ramos, take place at
Government House?

A Yes. The Government gave us the place where we could

undertake this.

Q Is this the Governor's office?

A No, no. This was his house, not the office.

Q The Governor's house?

A Yes, the house of the Governor; there is a house.
Q At whose invitation were you there?
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A The Governor was the one who initiated this to see if there
could be an agreement and the discussions.
Q Other members of the ayuntamiento were present with you,

were they?

A The first time, I think not; afterwards; I believe =o.
Q Was anyone else with you the first time?

A I don't recall. I don't think so.

Q Do you recall who else was in the meeting with you the

first time?

F-\ No, I don't recall.

Q Were you and the other members of the Town Council acting
as representatives of the community of Guadalcazar?

A That sole cabildo also intervened in the agreement.

Q and I'm sure that it’'s correqt that you and the members of
the Town Council were there in good faith?

A Of course.

0 And that you conducted your part of the negotiations in
good faith?

A Yes.

Q During these discussions, these negotiations that went on,

did you discuss the issuance of a municipal construction permit for La

Pedrera?
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A Well, yes, ves, we discussed it. As a matter of fact, this
' has nothing to do with the Acuerdo; this was after the Acuerdo.
Q That it was—-
THE INTERPRETER: Yes--I believe he had said "before.”
Wait a minute.
THE WITNESS: It was in 1991-1992--in '96.
BY MR. PEARCE:

Q Let me see if I can ask another question and ¢lear up my
mind.

At these negotiations at Government House that began in
1996, were there discussions concerning the issuance of a municipal
construction permit for La Pedrera?

A Yes, would you repeat that, please?

Q During the negotiations that took place at Government House
in 1996 in which you participated, isn't it true that there were
discussions concerning the issuance of a municipai construction permit
for La Pedrera?

A In the Agreement, or the discusesions--in the discussions
that we had to formulate this Agreement of Understanding, this
construction permit was not mentioned.

Q Let me see if I can be a little clearer, although that gets

more difficult as it gets lighter. I'm not asking if it was included
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in the Agreement itself but if it was discussed duriﬂg the meetings
that were held.

a The first thing that we tried to do was to reach an
Agreement of Understanding. After that, and depending on the
diecuséion, one would see if the construction permit would or not be
issued.

Q So I take that as a yes, that it was discussed in some form
or another in your--in negotiations?

A No, it was not discussed, because the first thing we wanted
to reach was actually an agreement, a dialogue, an agreement in order
to remediate the question or the issue of a construction permit is not
mentioned in the Agreement of Understanding.

Q Let's look at your testimony at page 4, the second
paragraph of your Counter-Memorial Declaration--page 4, paragraph 2, in
English.

Do you have that, sir--and when I say the second paragraph,
I'm referring to the second- full paragraph, so it's near the bottom.
A [Pause.] Here, it's been said that there was a request,

but this was denied--

v

Q There ig no question before him at this point, other than
if he has read that paragraph.

Have you, s8ir?
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A Yes.

Q In that testimony, you state: "During my administration
and all others, the Municipality has always held that the company did
not have a municipal construction license and much less a municipal
license to operate, which were the essential requirements set out in
the Ecological and Urban Code of the State of San Luis Potosi and in

the Financial Act for the Municipalities of the State of San Luis

Potosi."
Does that remain your testimony even today, Mr. Ramos?
y-¥ Yes.
Q And what do these laws set ocut as essential requirements?
A Well, first of all, this license was denied since the

landfill had been closed. It was also denied because it did not comply
with the regulations since the company had committed a series of
irregularities—-excuse me-~because they were requesting a license when
they had already built.

Q Let me see if I’ can refer back to your testimony that you
just read in that paragraph, where you talked about "essential
requirements®” set out in the law. And I am asking you, sir, what do

these laws set out as essential requirements?
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A That there should be no problems as the ones that are
congidered in that request, and that is with regard to ecological
matters.

Q And is it your position, sir, that those requirements are
in either the Ecclogical Code or the Financial Code, or both?

A Yes. Yea, sir, they are provided for in there.

Q A moment ago, you said that the company had done things to
violate regulationg. What regulations did you refer to, sir?

A In order to begin construction, the construction permit was

needed. The corporation built without that permit.

Q Any other violations?

A From an ecological peint of view, and that is not my
specialty.

Q But what were those ecological violations?

-\ To have dumped 55,000 drums outside, in open air.

Q And what regulation did that wviolate?

A Well, the inspection regulation., -

Q It viclated a construction regulation?

a Yes. I repeat, they had the facilities they had already

built without the benefit of a license.
Q In terms of the ecological violations that you say

occurred, were those violations of the Pederal law?
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A This was from the very beginning an ecological problem.

Q Yes, agir, but my question is were there ecological
violations that were in viclation of the Federal law.

A Yes--you've made it very repétitive, but the violation is
that they had already built without having the corresponding permit. I
have stated this several times.

Q So is it your testimony, sir, that the only violation of
the company was to have built without the construction permit?

A That is so, and then it was cancelled, the permit was
cancelled by SEDUE.

@ ° In that same paragraph 4 of your testimony, you continue by
stating: "The company had already requestéd the construction license
twice, and on both occasions, it was denied because they did not
fulfill the legal requirements.”

What legal requirements, Mr. Ramos, did they not comply

with when the first application was made, before there was any

construction?
A You said before the constructio#, correct, in 19917
Q Yes.
A Well, in 1991, there was another Town Council which denied

that right.
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Q Yes, sir, that may be correct, but you testified that it
was denied twice because legal requirements weren't fulfilled. Now,
having said that, I am asking you what legal requirements weren't

fulfilled with the first denial.

A Well, they were the ecological requirements.
Q And what were those?
A Well, a series of things, irregularities, as what I have

said before.

MR. PEARCE: This is a good place for me to break, Mr.
President, if it's good with you.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: Fine. Mr. Pearce would like to
break off now, at 6:27, so we'll break off here and resume tomorrow
morning at~-we'll go back to the original timing--9:30, please,
tomeorrow morning.

Now, the witness will be--he can't be exactly sequestrated,
but what does cne do about--

MR. PEREZCANO: "Yes, I'm going to ask, Mr. President,
gomeone to accompany Mr. Ramos back to his hotel.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: Someone who has not been involved

in the case.

MR. PEREZCANC: A representative of the Embassy, but they

have been present here,
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PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: Naturally, ﬁhey accept the
agsurance.

MR. PEREZCANO: Thank you.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: &and perhaps I should explain to Mr.
Ramos that this little bit of discussion that there has just been
between Mr. Perezcano and myself relates to the fact--not the fact--the
reguirement that you must not discuss the case with anybody while you
are still giving evidence.

Thank you.

All right. Session adjouxned.

[Whereupon, at 6:28 p.m., the proceedings were adjourned,

to reconvene on Wednesday, September 1, 1999, at 9:30 a.m.]
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PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: Good morning. We resume the
hearing. This is the third session on Wednesday, September 1, 1999.

We ended yesterday in the course of the cross-examination
of Mr. Ramos, and that is where we will resume today. I hope Mr. Ramos
hag had a pleasant evening on his own and is ready to face today.

Mr. Pearce?

MR. PEARCE: Yes, gir. Thank you.

Whereupon,
LEONEL RAMOS TORRES
resumed the stand and, having previously solemnly declared, was
examined and testified further, through the interpreter, as follows:
CROSS-EXAMINATION (Continued)

BY MR. PEARCE:

Q Good morning, sir.
A Good morning.
Q Behind Tab 1 in the book, you will see a copy of the

ayuntamiento's minutes of a December 5, 1995, Extraordinary Session.
First of all, eir, can you tell me what does it mean when it's an
extraordinary session?

A An extraordinary session is something that is not the

normal or the monthly meeting.
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Q

So there is some particular reason that causes you to

convene out of the ordinary?

y:t

Q

reason?

A

Yes.

And on December 5, 1995, what was that extraordinary

Well, to report about Metalclad's request with regard to

the construction permit.

Q

Wag there a particular day of the month that the normal

meetings were held?

A

The regular meetings were held every last day-—or first day

of each month.

A

Q

Had there already been a meeting held in December?
Yes.

S0 this was the second meeting you had in December?
That is correct.

Did you have a chance to--or would you take a moment,

pleage, and look at that document? And I want to ask you some

questions after that. Mainly, sir, what I wish to ask you is whether

that document accurately reflects the action taken by the ayuntamiento

on that date.

A

Yes, it reflects it.
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Q Will you please take a look, sir, at Slide Exhibit No. 1?
This is a copy of a part of those minutes. BAmong the listed reasons
for denial of the permit is a reason stated that seems to say that the
company had already applied for a permit on October 1, 1991, and it had
been denied. Is that correct?

A That is correct.

Q Can you tell ug, sir, which part of the statutes mentioned
that we talked about yesterday would support denying this permit
application on the basis that it had been denied on October 1, 18912

A It had been denied on the basis of a violation and the
irregularities in order to carry out such construction.

Q What was the violation that you refer to?

A Yesterday I was saying that in the beginning or from the
beginning there were 55,000 drums left outdoors without any norms of
care about these materials.

Q And what would be the irregularities that you refer to?

A Well, that is one of them. Second, I mention again, as I
said it yesterday, was that the request made for a construction permit
was made when construction of part of the work had already been done.

Q So that I understand, sir, the violation involved a

violation of environmmental standards for having 55,000 barrels in the

open?
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A Correct.

Q And the second violation--I'm sorry, the irregqularities
included the fact that some construction had been begun for which there
had been no local construction permit. Is that correct, sir?

A That is correct.

Q Will you please, sir, now look at Slide Exhibit 27

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: Just before you go to Exhibit 2,
may I just ask a question of Mr. Ramos? Please, could you help me, Mr.
Ramos? The application which was the subject of consideration in
December 1995 related to an application made in November 1994. Is that
correct?

THE WITNESS: Yes. What happens is that when I was
President of the municipality, again, a request was made for such
construction.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: You say when you were President of
the municipality.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: What was the date of that?

THE WITNESS: It was before the day of the meeting.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: So the answer to my question
remains that the application under consideration in 1995 was the

application made in November 19947
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THE WITNESS: Yes.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: So why was there such a long delay
in considering the application?

THE WITNESS: The period is about 11 months starting from
January 1, 1995.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: But the application was dated
November 15, 1994.

THE WITNESS: That was done to another municipal council.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: But was that municipal council the
municipal council of Guadalcazar?

THE WITNESS: Yes, with changes, because I became President
January 1, 1995.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: I understand that. ILet me ask you
this: Let's assume that the delay was only from January to December

1995, During that period, do you know whether work was done at La

Pedrera?

.

THE WITNESS: Yés. They were already built instructions.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: And did that work continue during
that period of 11 months?

THE WITNESS: Yes., It continued being done.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: Were the members of the council

aware of that?
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THE WITNESS: Well, from before, we knew that the landfill
was closed. But even so, it was being obgerved that inside
construction was being made.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: In that case, why was it that the
council did not take a decigion earlier?

THE WITNESS: In fact, in the beginning of each period,
each presidency, there is a lot of work, such as planning works, start
new projects, in order to begin to work. That's why I believe that
there was no answer sconer to that matter.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: Why was the matter considered in
December 1995?

THE WITNESS: Because it was when the company orally
reminded us again about the request.

PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: Thank you.

Mr. Pearce?

MR. PEARCE: Thank you, sir.

BY MR. PEARCE:

Q Looking at Slide Exhibit 2, sir, this appears toc be a
second reason given for this action by the town council on December 5th

ratifying the actions of a prior council as reflected in minutes of

January 20, 1992, in which that council resolved to deny any permit
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application that might aid in the continuation of the company in
Guadalcazar; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Can you tell us, sir, what basis in your statutes or laws
is there to deny your municipal construction permit because a preceding
ayuntamiento issued a resolution to ratify an earlier denial and
resolving not to issue any other permits to the company?

A I believe that our ratification is based in the illegality

because I don't know really how advanced that work was at that time.

Q At which time, sir? In October 19922

A Mm-hmm,

Q Is that a yes?

A It is a yes,

Q Thank you. 8lide Exhibit 3 appears to give a third reason

for the denial by your council of the construction permit application.
It refers to what's called an "obra nueva" or "new work." Does that
mean that since the congtruction had already happened, you would not
grant a permit for a new work?

A I understand that the request is made to begin a new work.
Afterwards, if expansions or some other works will be done, a new

request would be made.
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Q Does that mean, sir, that it was denied because the work
had already been done and you understood this application to be for an
obra nueva?

A That is correct. 1In fact, they, the company, were
requesting a permit to start a construction. Yesterday I was pointing
out that my council denied it because such construction had already
been done.

Q Let's look at Slide Bxhibit 4 now, please, which appears to
be a fourth reason given by the ayuntamiento for the denial of the
municipal construction permit. In particular, I refer to the language

that the permit is denied for any reason that could be used to deny it.

Ig that correct?

A That is correct. It was denied.
Q Was that one of the reasons for its denial?
a I repeat again, it was based in past or resolutions that

were taken before and the analysis that was done at the time to make

such a denial.

Q Did someone outside of the ayuntamiento give advice to you
and the council on the reasons to be listed for denying the permit that

appear in this resolution?
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A In fact, the one that prepares the minutes and who carries
out the analysis of the different data and different pericds is the
secretary of the ayuntamiento. |

) Yes, sir. Did the secretary of the ayuntamiento have
counsel from someone outside the town council in the p;eparation of
those minutes?

A With regard to laws, he was advised by a counsel who well
has nothing to do with the municipality. He is from cutside. At that
£ime he was a friend of the ayuntamiento.

Q I'm sorry. He wag a friend of?

A Yes, he was a friend of the ayuntamiento. I would like to
tell you that even--that, unfortunately, the counsel has passed away.
He's no longer with us. And to tell the truth, he was a very good
lawyer.

Q I accept that, sir. Did you discuss with Governor Sanchez
your decision to deny the permit?

A No, because this is a decision taken in the cabildo, not
even a decision that I would make.

Q Did you discuss it with Dr. Medellin?

A No. I believe that this is an attribution of the cabildo

because it is the maximum authority and the one who executes the
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decisions. I'm the one that executes the decisions at that time, but
the highest authority is the cabildo.
Q But that deoesn't prevent you from seeking advice from other

sources, does it?

A Of course not. If that was needed at the time, we could
request it.
Q Are you aware, sir, of the law concerning municipal

construction permits that requires you to make a decision within 10
days or to set the amount of fees in the absence of a decision?

A Unfortunately, I am not a lawyer. Well, to say some of the
decisions that were taken, well, some knowledge, like the questions
you're asking me.

Q Would it be correct, sir, you are then unaware-—let me
finish please; the question isn't completed--that you are unaware of a
law requiring no more than four months should elapse before this
decision is made?

A Ne, I was not aware, to tell the truth.

Q Did the governor or his legal counsel or anyone from his
administration advise you on this application for the construction
permit?

A No, no, truthfully. It was only a decision by the cabildo,

I repeat.
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Q Was Leonel Serrato counsel to Guadalcazar in November 19952
A We requested his advice.
Q And he was recommended to you by Governor Sanchez; isn't

that correct?

A No. No. I knew Mr. Serrato for many years, and his site
of origin actually is Blcano (?) casa, another municipality, but it's
cloge to (?) casa.

Q Are you aware, sir, that Mr. Serrato has testified that he
was contacted by the governor and asked if he would provide legal
ageistance to you?

A Well, truthfully, I do not know that detail. I sought him
out for many matters and even nowadays for personal matters, even now
when I'm no longer President.

Q Was Mr. Serrato a friend and adviser of the governor that
you know?

A No, I wouldn't be able to tell you whether that's so.

Q Among other things, Mr. Serrato agreed to advise you on the
municipality's response to the signing of the joint agreement, or the
Convenio, between SEMARNAP and Metalclad; correct?

A For signing of the Convenio or the agreement of

understanding? Excuse me. I'm not sure what you're referring to.
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Q In November of 1995, the federal government, through
SEMARNAP, INE, and PROFEPA, executed an agreement with Metalclad that,
among other things, would provide for the remediation at La Pedrera and
its commercial operation; As a result of that, Mr. Serrato gave you
counsel in preparing the municipality to respond to that Convenio;
isn't that correct?

A The negative response came at the root of a demonstration
by--or expression by persons from Guadalcazar.

Q But isn't it true that the ayuntamiento and those of you in

municipal leadership felt a need to prepare a response to this

Convenio?
A Yes, that is so.
Q And you and the members of the ayuntamiento felt that you

needed to take some action to protect the municipality from the opening
and the operating of La Pedrera; correct?

A Yes, that is so.

Q And it was after November '95 when Mr. Serrato, whether you
sought him out or the governor sent him to you, began giving you advice
that on December 5th the town council denied the construction permit;
correct?

A Yes, that is so.
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A Yes, that is so.

Q And you signe@ the administrative appeal with Mr. Sanchez
Torres on behalf of the munieipality; is that correct?

A Yes, Mr. Sanchez Torres and I--well, he served as the
municipal sindico, which carries out the functions of the public
ministry when the public ministry agent is not present in the place.

Q I'm showing you, sir, what is Exhibit 123 to the counter-
memorial. This is a document submitted by counsel for the Government
of Mexico, and I am, in fact, referring to their English translation of
what they deem to be a summary of the much larger document. I direct
your attention, sir, to page 1 in the English, the third bullet on that
first page of the summary. Counsel may need to help you locate that
page.

Have you found that?

A No.

MR. PEREZCANO: Mr. Pearce, I understand that Mr. Ramos
does not read English.

MR. PEARCE: I'm gsorry. [inaudible] sensitive to that.

BY MR. PEARCE:

Q Have you been able to find it in the Spanish?

Inasmuch as I am relying on your English translation,

perhaps I will go ahead and read it in English with the interpreter.
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Q And Mr. Serrato gave you legal advice with respect to that
action; is that correct?

2 I don't recall precisely, but as I was saying a moment ago,
apart from Mr. Serrato, when we did not have his support, then we did
draw on the counsel of an attorney who I mentioned a while ago, an
attorney who, like Mr. Serrate, is a personal friend, and I sought out
his advice.

Q May I inquire as to the name of this other attorney, sir?

A His name was, because he's already passed away, his rdame
was Concepcion or Jose Concepcion. I don't recall his--Anaya, I think,
but I'm not really certain.

Q Can you tell me, sir, if either Mr. Serrato or Mr.
Concepcion were aware that the permit had been’pending for 13 months?

A I don't know if I told them this when I sought out their
advice, but in any event, they weren't aware of this detail.

Q In December of 1995, the ayuntamiento filed an

administrative action at SEMARNAP for a reconsideration and withdrawal

of the Convenio agreement. Correct?

A Yes, that's so.

Q And Mr. Serrato was your legal adviger at the time?
A I believe so. I don't remember but I believe so.

Q You did have legal advice in doing that, did you not?
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And if there is a problem with that later, your counsel can raise it.
It says this, Mr. Ramos:

"The Convenio de Concertacion is contrary to law because"--
and I'm skipping to the second paragraph of the reasons. "It invades
the jurisdiction of the munijicipality and contradicts the will of the
people.”

Skipping the next sentence--actually, I won't skip the next
sentence. "The authorization of all acts relating to any type of
construction and the operation of establishments are within the
exclusive jurisdiction of the municipal authority. Therefore, only the
ayuntamiento of the municipality of Guadalcazar may authorize COTERIN
to construct the hazardous waste landfill facilities located at the La
Pedrera site as well as the operation of the establishment, in
accordance with the following recited laws.™

Do you agree that that language was in the administrative
appeal that you signed, sié?

A Yes, sir.
Q Two days following the signing of the Convenio, on November

26, 1995, you met in another extraordinary session of the town council;

correct?
A Yes.
Q And at that session Governor Sanchez attended and presided?
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A Yes.

Q And you indicate that at that time, as a municipality, you
were only partially informed about the federal agreement; correct?

A Yes, that is so. ’

Q In fact, didn't Governor Sanchez read to you at that
meeting the press release from the federal government?

A Yes, but Mr. Sanchez Unzueta came to the council meeting at
the request of the population of Guadalcazar. I understand that no
person, even if governor, if not authorized cannot attend a town
council meeting.

Q Did you believe, Mr. Ramos, that Secretary Carabias or
someone from the federal government should formally notify the town
council about the agreement?

A I think that all decisions made within the territory of a
municipality, that municipality should be taken inte account,
egpecially the authorities, for in Mexico the municipalities and the
states have autonomy even though there is a relationship among both,
among the varjous authorities.

0 Did you take it as an insult to the municipality's autonomy
that the Secretary failed to notify the ayuntamiento?

A Not a an insult, but as something £hat might happen to any

public official.
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Q Did Secretary Carabias or any other federal official
contact you or, to your knowledge -—- [tape ends] -- in Guadalcazar to
discuss the Convenioc agreement before it was signed?

A No. The Convenio that was signed was at the regquest of
society and of the town council itself.

Q Are you aware that the federal government in negotiating
the Convenio in November 1995 negotiated certain provisions in that
agreement that affected the municipality of Guadalcazar?

A No. I found about this through the press, that is, the
decision of the federal government, in this case the decision by Julia
Carabias, with respect to the action sought to be taken in the
municipality.

Q Let's look, please, behind Tab 7 of the witness book. I
wigh to refer to Article 13 in English, and it looks like it's on page
6 in the Spanish. This is a document also provided by the Government
of Mexico.

I note that Article 13, which is reciting obligations of
the company, involves the creation of a citizens supervisor committee
in which up to 15 persons will be designed by the city council of
Guadalcazar. Do you see that?

[Pause. ]

THE WITNESS: Yes.
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BY MR. PEARCE:

Q And in Article 14, it says the company will provide access
to the members of that committee upon a 72-hour notice; correct?

A Yes. Yes, that's what it =says.

Q And in Article 15, the company promises to pay an amount of
two new pesos per ton of waste that enters the treatment facility, and
they agreed to adjust that amount based on the inflation index in
Mexico. Then that article requires that the resulting amount of monies
will be directed towards social works in the municipality of
Guadalcazar. Correct?

A Yes, that's what it says.

Q And it also indicates in Article 16 that the company will
give a 10 percent discount for all companies within the state of San
Luis Potosi, which would include companies in Guadalcazar; correct?

A That's what it says.

Q And Article 17, the government negotiated this concession
from the company: +that it promises for one day a week to provide free
medical consultation to the inhabitants of the municipality of
Guadalcazar. Correct?

A Yes, that's what it says.

Q And in Article 18, the company promised to employ manual

labor from the municipality of Guadalcazar, and to the extent that that
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labor force from Guadalcazar did not meet certain technical training
requirements, the company would give preference to the inhabitants of
Guadalcazar for training. Correct?

A Yes, that's what it says.

Q And in Article 21, the company agreed to provide two
courses per year on the management of hazardous waste to people in the
public federal, state, and municipal sectors. Correct?

A Yes, that's what it says. That is correct.

Q Do you agree, Mr. Ramos, that those are activities and
items and events that relate to the municipality of Guadalcazar?

A Yes. Well, that's what it says right here.

Q And no one from the federal government consulted with you
or the town council about these things, did they?

A Yes, that is so.

Q The administrative appeal that the municipal filed was
denied by Secretary Carabias; correct?

A Yes.

Q And soon after that, on January 31, 1996, the municipality
filed an amparo action which was accepted by the court on February 6,
1997~~-correction, 1996, wherein you sought an injunction of the
impiementation of the terms of that Convenio; corrxect?

A Yes, that is correct.
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Q Except for thoge provisions relating to remediation,
though; right?

A Yes, that is so.

Q A few minutes ago, we looked at the administrative appeal
that you signed, and among the reasons set forward in that appeal was
that construction and operatioﬁ of establishments within the community
are the exclusive jurisdiction of the municipal authority. But you did

not make that argument in the filing of the amparo; correct?

A I don't recall, but I think so. The truth is I don't
recall.
Q Okay. Thank you. B&and Mr. Serrato was your legal counsel

at that time as well; correct?

A Yes. And, I repeat, Mr. Serrato and, when he was not
available, the attorney who I menticned earlier.

Q Yes, sir. Did yoh believe that that Convenio signed by the
federal government with Metalclad was an illegal agreement?

3 I think so because the municipal authorities weren't being
taken into account, the population of Guadalcazar, in this case the
citizenry.

Q Would another way of saying that, sir, be that the people
weren't consulted?

A That is so.
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Q Is it your position that the federal government had no
authority to enter into the Convenio?
THE INTERPRETER: Excuse me. Could you just repeat...?
MR. PEARCE: What did I ask? Oh.
BY MR. PEARCE:
Q Ig it your position that the federal government had no
authority to enter into the Convenio?
A I don't know if they could or could not. I really don't
know what is the scope of what the federation ecould do,.
Q What part of the Convenio agreement, sir, do you consider
to be unlawful?
A I think that it was all legal. The problem is that I think
that the people of Guadalcazar were not being taken into consideration.
Q Were you aware of whether Mr. Serrato kept Governor Sanchesz
informed of these issues or not?
A No. I think that this is something very personal
[inaudible}. Really, I could not tell you.
Q Did you believe that Mr. Serrato was discussing matters
with the governor?
A I c¢ouldn't tell you the truth.
Q Do you believe that Mr. Serrato advised the town council to

do anything that Governor Sanchez disapproved of?
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A He advised when the cabildo requested this assistance, and
not vice versa, that Mr. Serrato was then going to the cabildo and
advising by his-~personally, by his own will.

Q Did Governor Sanchez ever say to you that he approved of
the actions you were taking regarding the municipal construction
permit?

A The actionsg that were undertaken were undertaken upon the
initiative of the people of Guadalcazar, not even due to my own
initiative or the initiative of the governor. That would be very
difficult.

Q I undersgstand the source of the initiative, sir. I'm just
asking if the governor ever said to you that he approved of what you
were doing--not that he interfered, but if he approved of it.

A At the beginning--and perhaps I'm going to go a little bit
out of the question--the governor was really somewhat aside from the
problem, and proof of this was that the people of Guadalcazar would
demonstrate in the Plaza Guadalcazar and not in San Luis Potosi, so
that the governor would intervene or so that the governor would become
interested in the problem of Guadalcazar. 8o this was actually the
request of the petition of the people of Guadalcazar until the governor

took the matters in his hand. And he attended to the request of the
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petitions to the needs and answered then the demands of the people of
Guadalcazar.

[Pause. ]

BY MR. PEARCE:

Q Would those petitions to the governor that you indicate
were made by the members of the community include petitions from the
citizens of Guadalcazar to have the governor issue an environmental
decree that included La Pedrera within its confines?

A Yes, upon the petition of the citizenry of Guadalcazar and
upon pressure of the citizenry of Guadalcazar, the governor was asked.

Q S0 is that what you meant, sir, when you said a moment ago

that the governor took things into his own hands?

A I wanted to say there were different actions, not only
this.

Q But that was one of them?

a Yes, that was one of them.

Q Following the filing of the amparo, the ruling of the court

wag to enjoin Metalclad from commercially operating the landfill just

as you had requested; correct?

A I don't understand your question.
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Q I'm sorry. The court in which you filed the amparo made a
preliminary ruling that said Metalclad could not commercially operate
and this is what you had asked them to do; correct?

A Yes, that is correct.

Q But another provision of that preliminary ruling provided
for remediation as set forth in the Convenio; correct?

A Yes, that is so.

Q Ia it also correct, Mr. Ramos, that your goals in
initiating the amparo--that is, to stop commercial operations while at
the same time having remediation--were the same as your reasons for
denying the construction permit?

A I think that there is ho—-I think that one thing and the
other really do to agree. They are two different things. The
construction permit was denied for the reasons that I gave you before,
and the remedy that was presented was to put a stop to the actions that
Metalclad wanted to undertake.

Q Yes, sir. But in denying the construction permit, you
achieved the purpose of denying commercial operations, didn't you?

A That is so.

Q So your objection to the facility--let me rephrase. The
denial of the construction permit really had nothing to do with the

timing or the quality of the construction; rather, your objection was
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to the manner in which the facility was going to be used. Isn't that
right?

A I think so. The problem was the construction permit was
denied for what had already been said before.

[Pause.]
BY MR. PEARCE:

Q 8ir, I refer you to the last paragraph on page 5 of your
counter-memorial statement. The particular language to which I wish to
refer is behind Tab 8. Here, sir, you were talking about the October
1996 negotiations, and regarding the issue of the municipal
construction permit, you say, "This must be analyzed within its proper
context. The construction license will not be a problem if the final
agreement was regarding remediation, nor would it be if the agreement
were for the operation of a non-hazardous waste landfill or if the
community had given their consent.”

Was that your position, sir, in October 19967

A I would like to make a comment with regard to this
statement. The agreement taken with Mr. Carvajal, if you read
carefully the agreement of understanding, at no time does it mention
that this construction permit will be granted. This was a comment made
by one of the councilmen in the sense that once the initial agreement

had been signed, there would be no problem with what would continue
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permit. That is not even mentioned in the acuerdo. This was an

W

observation made by {(?) Carvajal at that time, and, well, we never
said that.

Q What I'm asking, =sir, is for your response to the language
that's in your declaration that we just read. In fact, in your
declaration, you say some of what you just said. And you suggest that
Mr. Carvajal seems to imply that you had committed yourselves to the
issuance of the municipal constructiog prermit. And while that's
another issue, your statement in clarification of that is that it must
be analyzed within its proper context. And if the company had agreed
to remediation, the construction permit would not have been a problem.

If it was to be a non-hazardous waste landfill, the construction permit

would be no problem. &And if the community gave its consent, no

problem.
Isn't that your testimony, sir?
A That is so. Yes, that is so.
Q So your position and intent as President of the

municipality was to prevent La Pedrera from ever opening as a hazardous
waste landfill by withholding the issuance of the municipal

construction permit; is that correct?
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a Such permit was not denied at a personal level. I was not

denying it. It was the cabildo was denying it.
| Q And the cabildo denied it for the reasons that I just
gsuggested; isn't that correct?

A That is so.

Q So your goal was to--yours and the cabildo's goal was to
prevent the company from usiné the facility as a hazardous waste
landfill; correct?

A Yes, and I would like to repeat, this is not a decision
that pertainswonly to the cabildo. This represents the will and the
consensus of the population or the people of Guadaleazar.

Q Mr. Ramos, why did you not just simply state in your denial
of the permit that this permit is denied because the community of

Guadalcazar doesn't want a hazardous waste landfill at La Pedrera?

A That's it.
Q Why did you not put that language in the denial?
A I don't know, but the truth is that the ones who opposed,

the people of Guadalcazar, and they have received support at the time
upon the regquest of the society or the people has been the cabildo.

Q During your administration, sir, how many construction
licenses were denied because the work was finished before the permit

was submitted?
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-\ I don't think that there have been works of that type that
have damaged the environment that were built or they started building

them before and then afterwards requested the construction permit.

Q So you don't recall any?
A No.
Q Is it fair to =ay, sir, that based on your testimony--I'll

withdraw that.

Isn't it correct that the acuerdo that you were negotiating
memorializes the fact that you and the other local officials were
negotiating the circumstances under which the municipal construction
permit would be issued?

A The municipal permit for the construction was going to be
issued by our town council, but I don't think so because from the very
beginning I have stressed that that permit was not granted because of
what I have told you many times.

Q And if the negotiations that took place during that time
that we're talking about had concludéd to your satisfaction and the
satisfaction of the other leaders of the municipality, this same
construction permit in your words would not have been a problem even
though the facility had already been constructed; correct?

A It would be difficult to on a personal level say or explain

the future criteria or copinion or to really think what the people of
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Guadalcazar would say because I don't think it's in my hands to say
what decision would have been taken.

Q But if those negotiations had ended in an agreement where
the company would remediate, it would not have been a problem to give
them the construction permit, would it?

A I could not really think what the decision of the cabildo
would have been. This is something that I believe personally. But I
doﬂ't know what to tell you with regard of what would have been the

wishes of the cabildo and the society.

Q But it could have been granted, couldn't it?

A It could have been granted, that's a superstition,
hypothesis.

Q and, of course, a permit that would have been granted under

those circumstances would be valid under the law that you talked about
earlier, wouldn't it?
A If it would have been granted, yes.
MR. PEARCE: I'm about to enter a new area, Mr. President,
if it's your choice to break at this point.
PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: Yes. We'll break until 11:20.
[Recess. )
PRESIDENT LAUTERPACHT: You have a new topic to turn to.

MR. PEARCE: Yes, sir.
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BY MR. PEARCE:

Q I'd like to direct your attention, sir, to your counter-
memorial testimony at page 3, paragraph 11. It's behind Tab 11.
That's the same page and paragraph in both English and Spanish. 1It's
Tab 11, counter-memorial, page 3, paragraph 11.

I wish to direct your attention to the statement that you
make: "I can guarantee the Tribunal that almost total opposition to
the landfill facility exists.™ BAnd you go on to question the results
of some evidence to the contrary; correct?

A That's correct.

Q And you refer, sir, to a poll by a group of local
economists in August of 1995 that shows that 27 percent of the people
in the surrounding area favor the landfill's opening; right?

a ¥Yes, sir.

Q And in that same poll, you cite, It showed that in the
large community 33 percent of the people were not informed on the
project, 38 percent favored’ the project, and 31 percent weren't even
interested; correct?

A That is correct.

Q So it appears from that poll, sir, that almost two-thirds
of the people in the larger community didn't know or didn't care,

doesn't it?
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A That is correct.

Q You seem to also question, Mr. Ramos, a petition with 530
signatures from community residents who were in favor of the project;
right?

A That is correct, as the text indicates.

Q And it's your belief that those people were possibly misled
into signing the petition?

A I'd like to make a point here. This survey was addressed
only to individuals in the area where the hazardous waste landfill is
located, and these are individuals who were being employed by the
company. 1, when I was the head of the municipality, understood the
facts, and I even suggested to these people that they conduct a
plebiscite in all the communities of this area, not simply in the
municipality. &and that's why I've pointed out it's difficult for me to
believe that those signatures, all those signatures were really in
support of opening up the landfill. I really do not believe that.

Q It's not your position, is it, that all 530 people who
signed were employed at the landfill?

A No. The actual number of people were 79. However,
somebody hired by the company really represents the whole family with a

number of members in it. B&And interestingly enocugh -- [tape end=s].
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.T2A 1 Q I'm sorry. I hadn't finished the question yet. By
2 professors at the University of San Luis Potosi that showed that 82
3 percent were in favor of the landfill project. Do you have any--is
4 that correct, sir?
5 A That's correct.
6 Q Do you have any personal knowledge that the poll done by
7 the group of local economists was not done properly?
8 a Yes, I believe so.
9 Q You have evidence that the poll was not conducted properly?
10 A What I would like f£o suggest and might give you as an
11 example is that we have a population of 27,000 people, and 500

. 12 signatures do not represent the adult or the active population of the
13 community.
14 Q I understand that, sir. I'm referring now not to the
15 petition with the 530 signatures. In fact, I'm referring to the poll
16 by the local economists that showed 97 percent of the people in favor
17 and asking if you have any knowledge that that poll was improperly
18 conducted.
19 A I thought it was done legally, but I repeat that it was
20 done within the area where the landfill is located and that these were

21 people employed by the landfill.
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